


Table of Contents
March 1, 2023

Agenda Item #IIL.......ooviiiniiiiniiiiiiiiii st ssi s aaes i Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #IV..................... Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of February 15,
2023

Agenda Item #V.......ocoiniiinns Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of February 15,
2023

Agenda [tem #VIL.......coiiiriiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiicnrr s s s General Manager / Staff
Reports

i.  Preliminary January 2023 Financials

ii. 2023 Rate Hearing Process



Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #111



V Board of Public Utilities

Kansas City, Kansas
BOARD AGENDA

Regular Session
March 1, 2023 — 6:00 P.M.

L. Call to Order
II. Roll Call
Tom Groneman, District 2
David Haley, At Large, Position 2
Robert L. Milan, Sr., District 1
Rose Mulvany Henry, At Large, Position 3

Jeff Bryant, District 3
Mary L. Gonzales, At Large, Position 1

III. Approval of Agenda
IV. Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of February 15, 2023
V. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of February 15, 2023

VI. Public Comments

VIL General Manager / Staff Reports
1. Preliminary January 2023 Financials

1. 2023 Rate Hearing Process
1ii. Energy Market Conditions / Nearman Operation
v, Miscellaneous Comments

VIII.  Board Comments

IX. Adjourn



Approval of Minutes
Work Session 2-15-23
Agenda Item #1V



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Work Session on Wednesday, February 15, 2023 at 5:00 P.M. The following Board Members
were present: Rose Mulvany Henry, President; Thomas Groneman, Vice President; Robert L.
Milan, Secretary; Jeftf Bryant, Mary Gonzales. David Haley attended via Zoom.

Also present: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Deputy Chief
Counsel; Wendy Green, Senior Counsel; Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief
Administrative Officer; Jeremy Ash, Interim Chief Operating Officer; Johnetta Hinson,
Executive Director Customer Service; Steve Green, Executive Director Water Operations;
Glen Brendel, Executive Director Electric Production; David Mehlhaff, Chief
Communications Officer; Jerry Sullivan, Chief Information Officer; Dennis Dumovich,
Director of Human Resources; and Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager.

A video of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities and can be found on
the BPU website, www.bpu.com.

Ms. Mulvany Henry called the meeting to order at 5:00 P.M.
Roll call was taken, all Board Members were present.

Item #3 —Approval of Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda by Mr. Groneman, seconded by Ms.
Gonzales, and unanimously carried.

Item #4 —Board Update/GM Update

Mr. Groneman attended the Unified Government (UG) Public Works and Safety
Standing Committee and had nothing to report pertaining to BPU.

Mr. Haley attended the Economic Development & Finance Standing Committee and
spoke about the Monarch’s ownership requesting dollars to replace their turf with grass. He
also spoke about a bio-solids project presentation given by Jeff Fisher, UG staff.

Mr. Johnson said that several years ago the UG had talked about doing a project at the
Wastewater facility. The UG inquired if BPU would purchase power created by their gas

recycling.

Page 1 0f 3



WORK SESSION MINUTES —~ WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

Item #5 —BPU/UG Billing

Ms. Mulvany Henry reported on the PILOT Taskforce meeting she attended, There was
discussion on recommendations that the taskforce planned on bringing forward. She asked if
the UG had ever looked at collecting the PILOT the same way property taxes were collected,
at two intervals during the year. She also told Commissioner Bynum of the BPU Board’s desire
to have the full BPU Board and UG Board of Commissioners meet. She also spoke to the
taskforce about having the BPU charges and UG charges be due at separate times in the month.

There was Board discussion about how other cities might collect their fees and also the
need to have both full boards meet and collaborate. There was also continued discussion about

separating bills and penalties that could be incurred.

Mr. Milan passed out to the Board regarding earlier PILOT documents and articles and
the Board discussed previous PILOT amounts.

Item #6 — Board Community Advisory Group

The Board discussed how to move forward on forming a Board/Community advisory
group. Brainstorming included:

o Define what they will do.
*  Who was going to be part of the group?
* A subcommittee of three Board members could be formed to meet with the public. The
subcommittee could work toward:
o Determining what was to be accomplished.
o To set ground rules and processes.
o They could find the community participants.
o Work on how to determine who would be the spokespersons for the community
groups.
o Possibly an outside facilitator
¢ Identifying best practices amongst utilities that do what we do.
e Define what is a “want” and what is a “need”.
¢ Isit cost effective?
e [t has to be fair to all ratepayers.

Page 2 of 3



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

e Community engagement could help sculpt future Board presentations on topics the
committee gets questions about. Communications could make it known what presentations
would be upcoming when putting out the Board meeting announcement.

The Board decided to create a committee whose purpose would be to create a set of
ground rules and then engage with the community advisory groups.

Mr. Bryant, Ms. Mulvany Henry and Ms. Gonzales all offered to be on this committee.

Mr. Bryant also wanted to make sure that all of the upcoming designated committees
met this year.

Mr. Johnson agreed that forming a committee was a good idea. He suggested looking
at other advisory committees to find out why they existed. It would be good to hear where
people were at and see what BPU could do to help inform to close the gap. It was very
important for both Board and management to carry the same message.

Item #7 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the Work Session at 5:58 P.M. by Mr. Groneman,
seconded by Mr. Milan and unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 3 of 3



FW: Wyandotte County’s utility tax is double the national average. Residents aren’t happy  Page 1 of 4

FW: Wyandotte County’s utility tax is double the national average.
Residents aren’t happy

William A. Johnson Reply all |
Wed 2/8 328 PM
Board Members; Angela J. Lawson

UG_tough-times-and-di...
186 KB

Show alf 1 attachments {486 KB} Downicad

I think this may be ail we can dig up

William A. Johnson
General Manager

Board of Public Utilities
540 Minnesota Ave,
Kansas City Kansas 66101
(913) 573-9008
wajohnson@bpu.com

BPU

T POWEH OF COMMUMITY

From: Randy J. Otting <rotting@bpu.com>

Sent: Tuesday, February 7, 2023 8:50 AM

To: William A. Johnson <wajohnson@bpu.com>; David E. Mehlhaff <dmehlhaff@bpu.com>; Executive
Staff <ExecutiveStaff@bpu.com>

Subject: RE: Wyandotte County’s utility tax is double the national average. Residents aren’t happy

Attached is the July 2009 UG Budget PowerPoint presentation.

Slides 12, 25-26 discuss the Economic Crisis Emergency PILOT (ECEP) Relief Fund.

From: William A. Johnsan <wajohnson@bpu.com>

Sent: Monday, February 6, 2023 2:24 PM

To: Randy J. Otting <rotting@bpu.com>; David E. Mehlhaff <dmehlhaff@bpu.com>; Executive Staff
<ExecutiveStaff@bpu.com>

Subject: RE: Wyandotte County’s utility tax is double the national average. Residents aren’t happy

Thanks Randy,

httns://mail . bnu.com/owa/ 71147071



FW: Wyandotte County’s utility tax is double the national average. Residents aren’t happy Page 2 of 4

L

Do you have any copies of UG budget presentations for FY2010? The UG raised the PILOT to 12.8% that
year.

Thanks,

William A. Johnson
General Manager

Board of Public Utilities
540 Minnesota Ave.
Kansas City Kansas 66101
(913) 573-9008
wajohnson(@bpu.com

Yol POWER QF COMMURTY

From: Randy J. Ctting <rotting@bpu.com>

Sent: Monday, February 6, 2023 11:15 AM

To: David E. Mehthaff <dmehlhaff@bpu.com>; Executive Staff <ExecutiveStaff@bpu.com>
Subject: RE: Wyandotte County’s utility tax is double the national average. Residents aren’t happy

Here's a 2009 PowerPoint from the UG that may help answer some of these questions.

From: David E. Mehlhaff <dmehlhaff@bpu.com>

Sent: Monday, February 6, 2023 9:31 AM

To: Executive Staff <ExecutiveStaff@bpu.com>; Randy J. Otting <rotting@bpu.com>; Board Mermbers
<BoardMembers@bpu.com>

Subject: Wyandotte County’s utility tax is double the national average. Residents aren’t happy
importance: High

Kansas City Star

Wyandotte County commissioners considered ways to provide relief to residents at a
Thursday night public meeting, after many expressed that they were struggling to pay
a controversial fee placed on their utility bills. The commissioners said they would look
into reducing the fee for residents or eliminating it altogether after many were
frustrated over having to pay an added tax to the Unified Government of Wyandotte
County on top of every electricity and water bill managed by the Board of Pubtic
Utilities. The PILOT fee, which stands for payment in lieu of taxes, helps the Unified
Government manage revenue losses from property taxes that are not collected from
the BPU, since they are tax exempt. The money is used to help fund city operations.
Residents unable to pay the bill, including the PILQT fee, risk being disconnected from
the public utility.

As it stands, the tax the Unified Government adds on to every Board of Public Utilities

bill is far higher than comparable utility company fees across the country. Whereas
comparable fees tax around 5.5% on average, Wyandotte County residents are taxed at

httns://mail.bou.com/owa/ WV Voliok!



FW: Wyandotte County’s utility tax is double the national average. Residents aren’t happy  Page 3 of 4

11.9%, according to the American Pubtic Power Association. The tax has been a major
complaint among residents for months, with many arguing the fees are not affordable
to the average tax payer.

Louise Lynch, who co-founded the Community Conscience Action Network and also
spoke at the meeting, called for the fee to be eliminated entirely. “To continue,
month after month, begging BPU for help is ridiculous... [ came in September to speak
about this issue,” she said. “We need to get.rid of it totally. We cannot afford it.”
Lynch has worked alongside Ty Gorman, a spokesman for the Kansas Chapter of the
Sierra Club, which is a grassroots organization advocating for environmental policy, to
rally residents in favor of eliminating the tax.

“They have hundreds of dollars in fees that are unrelated to utility costs and they
basically cut people off for not being able to pay them,” Gorman said following a
December BPU meeting, where he and other residents prompted the utility to
advocate for changing the tax. An amendment to the Unified Government charter
ordinances that would split the fee into different rates for residents and commercial
businesses was proposed, but quickly tabled so that further research could be done on
how to provide tax relief to the people most in need. A committee led by District 1
Commissioner Melissa Bynum plans on presenting the Unified Government in March
with options on how to break down the fee and what it would cost the government to
reduce the tax.

“Based on the data alone you all need to be warned how hard this will be to bring
PILOT relief,” Bynum said in the meeting. She explained that even a 1% reduction in
the fee could cost the government over $1 million. Bynum said her committee was
looking for ways to reduce the tax for people within a certain income bracket, age, or
race, in an effort to provide the most relief to the people disproportionately struggling
to pay the fee.

Less than a quarter of the Unified Government’s revenue comes from the PILOT fee
and a majority of the accounts paying the tax are residential. District 7 Commissioner
Chuck Stites welcomed the idea of removing the tax, but like the majority of
commissioners, appeared confused over how the fee got so high. “Some time ago it
was raised with the expectation that it would be reduced. Do we have any information
as to why?” Stites said to Board of Public Utilities General Manager Bill Johnson during
the meeting. Johnson explained that due to falling revenue and rising expenses in
2009, the Unified Government and Board of Public Utilities agreed to raise the PILOT
fee from 9.9% to 13.8%, and since then it has dropped to the current rate. He could not
remember what the Unified Government had agreed to do to lower the rate further.
“These are tax dollars that are levied against utility revenue and the people in this
room are the ones who are paying for it,” he said.

David E. Mehlhaff

Chief Communications Officer
Kansas City Board of Public Utilities
{913) 573-9173 Office

{913) 231-9399 Ceil

httns://mail.bnu.com/owa/ 140D



. WY Wednesday, September 5. 2001
www.knnsasceity.com 5

WYAN

DOTTE

e e

e AT R RS o AT

rescinds, re-approves
increase despite

By MABK WIRBE
The Kansas City Star

In the span of 30 mimites
the Wyandotte Countys Unifled
Buaadegf a(&mtﬁisalonm fixat re-
scin en re-approved a
resolution it had passed last
month.

At issue was a controversial pro-
posal to increase the tEgv'mm:lt in
lieu of taxes (PILOT) appears
on ratepayers’ Board of Public Utl-
tias bills, The Unified Government’s
2002 budget, Aug. 16, in-
cluded an incrense in the PILOT
from 5.9 percent to 7.9 percent,
enough to generate about $3 mil-
lien a year.

After the budget was approved,
however, ﬂ:aUn%ﬂedGmmem‘s
legal staif discovered a provision in
a charter ordinance that requires
the board to meet with members of
tha BPU before Increasing the PI-
1OT.

On Frday, the board did just that.

Shorily after opening the meet-
Ing, Unifled Government Chief
Counsel Hal Walker said that he
accepted responsibility for the
uversi‘fht. “It was a matter that
should have occurred weeks ago,”
hesald.

The board then unanimously
voted to rescind the resolition,

In the discussion that followed,
BPU member im Head argued that
a PILOT increase would have seves-
al negative consequences. Not anly
would it Increase the average
ratepayer’s bill by $22 a year, he
said, but it would create much larg-
er increases for the BPU's corporate
customers. Some of the clty’s larger
companies would have to pay
more than $100,000 a year toward
the FILOL

Head argued that ratepayers
wuould be better off If the Uniffed

BPU objections

Government collected the addi-
Honal money through

taxes, which, he noted, are de-
ductible on federal income-tax
forms,

BPU member Loretta Colombel
sald she that the Unified
Government hadn't met earlier
with BPU offlcials, The Increase,
o o the ey 1 oty o
flcolt to apo-
tentlal rate increase, should one be
necessary. The increase alao would
hurt the BPU% ability to offer better
rates to potential commercial cus-
tomers as incentives for economic

she said.

Colomhel and Head also ex-
pressed concem for those o fixed
incomes. “It's a very awkward feel-
ing whem you have k-
Ing, “What does this mean to us?'”
Colombel said.

In response, Unified Govenument
Commissloner Nathan Barnes not-
ed that several of the BPUY's large
commercial ratepayers recetve
property tax abatements and
would not cn;:hu'lbute additional
revemue through a propesty tax in-
crease. Commissioner Tem Cooley
il:.lg thla): for individuals, the sav-

to be gained through a federal-
Income tax deduction would be
nominal.

Mayur Carol Marinovich said the
I..;nntﬂed'Goverrlmentmdadtohe
ore diligent” about scheduling
meetings with the wuiility. “We've
been real reimniss, ..,” she said,
After the discussion, the board
unanimously approved the PILOT
Increase. Conmumissioners Bill
Miller, Butch Ellison and Pat Hug-

gins Pettey were not present.

To reach Mari: Wiche, Wyandotte
County government reporter; call
{816) 234-5985 or send e-mail to
mudebe@cxtan.com.



RESOLUTION NO. ‘\Q «233—{)@

WHEREAS, Unified Government Charter Ordinance No. C0-3-02 requires the
setting over of funds by the BPU to be used for governmental functions, known as a
payment in lieu of taxes or “the PILOT”; and ,

WHEREAS, Section 17 of said Charter Ordinance states that the percentage of
gross operating revenues to be set over to funds to be used for governmental purposes
shall be determined by resolution, by the Unified Government of Wyandotte
County/Kansas City, Kansas (“Unified Government”) in an amount not less than 5
percent nor more than 15 percent of its gross revenues for a fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, the Unified Government and the Board of Public Utilities have met
and conferred to discuss said percentage to be established for the fiscal year of 2010 and
beyond; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners believes it must adopt the Economic
Crisis Emergency Pilot with increased PILOT payments for the years 2010 and 2011 and
returning to the 2009 level of 9.9 percent in 2012,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF WYANDOTTE
COUNTY/KANSAS CITY, KANSAS:

1. That the percentage of gross revenues to be set over by the Board of
Public Utilities to the Unified Government to be used for governmental purposes shall be
12.8 percent for the fiscal year 2010, The Unified Government Clerk is hereby
authorized and directed to give written notice to the Board of Public Utilities on or before
the first day September 2009,

2. That such percentage of gross revenues to be set over by the Board of
Public Utilities to the Unified Government to be used for governmental purposes shall be
11.9 percent for the fiscal year 2011 and 9.9 percent thercafter.

3. That Resolution No. R-75-08 is hereby rescinded.
ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE UNIFIED

GOVERNMENT OF WYANDOTTE COUNTY/KANSAS CITY, KANSAS
THIS 30™ DAY OF JULY 2009,

*Unified Government Clerk

Approved as to Form:

Unified Government Counsel




Approval of Minutes
Regular Session 2-15-23
Agenda Item #V



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Regular Session on Wednesday, February 15, 2023 at 6:00 P.M. The following Board Members
were present: Rose Mulvany Henry, President; Robert L. Milan, Secretary, Jeff Bryant, Mary
Gonzales. Thomas Groneman, Vice President and David Haley attended via Zoom.

Also present: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Deputy Chief
Counsel; Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer; Jeremy Ash, Chief
Operating Officer; Johnetta Hinson, Executive Director Customer Service; Steve Green,
Executive Director Water Operations; Glen Brendel, Executive Director Electric Production;
Maurice Moss, Executive Director Corporate Compliance; Jerry Sullivan, Chief Information
Officer; David Mehlhaff, Chief Communications Officer; Dennis Dumovich, Director of
Human Resources; Patrice Townsend, Director Utility Services;; Al Garcia, Key Account
Utility Specialist; and Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager.

A video of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities and can be found on the
BPU website, www.bpu.com.

Ms. Mulvany Henry called the Board meeting to order at 6:01 P.M. She welcomed all
that were listening to or viewing the meeting. She informed all that the meeting was being
recorded including video and audio. During the public comment section, those attending in
person, wishing to speak, should use the sign-up sheet at the entry and provide their name and
address. Public comments were limited to five minutes and should be addressed to the Board.
Members of the public who wished to speak to the Board using Zoom needed to use the Raise
Hand feature at the bottom of the application or window to signal that they wish to address the
board during the public comment section. Members of the public connected by phone only,
needed to press *9 to indicate they wished to address the Board in the public comment section.
No confidential information should be shared, including, account information. Staff would not
provide individual account information during an open meeting. As always, the public could
also email or call the BPU with any concerns. Ms. Mulvany Henry introduced herself and the
other Board Members along with the General Manager, and Legal Counsel.

Roll call was taken and all Board Members were present, Mr. Haley via Zoom.

Item #3 — Approval of Acenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda by Ms. Gonzales, seconded by Mr. Bryant,
and unanimously carried.

Page 1 of 8



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #4- Approval of Regular Session Minutes of February 1, 2023

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Regular Session of February 1,
2023, by Ms. Gonzales, seconded by Mr. Bryant, and unanimously carried.

Item #5— Public Comments

Mr. David Smith, 400 Troup Ave., stated that after the last Board Meeting he understood
more about the BPU charges and UG charges.

He was listening to the Work Session earlier and the idea of committees sounded great
depending on what we decided to come up with. He would be more than honored to be on a
committee.

Mr. Smith said that people needed to get out more in the community because people on
the Board probably don’t live like a lot of people do in this community, finance-wise and
housing-wise.

Tscher Mank of Wyandotte County, said that at the last meeting they did talk about the
differences in the charges between BPU and the UG. There were access charges on the bill for
$42 but they don’t have access to another company. She could not see any reason for the charges
to be on there.

She looked at the BPU budget and the expenditures are way less than what we’re
bringing in. She said the people that are getting overcharged have the smart meters and she
checked into it and went to their website and called them and they told her there were faults in
them and they could overcharge people. She asked that we please check the bills for December
and January because the bills almost doubled.

She said we told her to stay after the meeting but she wanted to set up a meeting in the
daytime.

Ms. Mulvany Henry asked Ms. Mank if on the BPU charges did she know what
specifically the fees were for. She had mentioned access charges.

Ms. Mank said there were electric access fees for around $22 and water access fees for
around $20.

Page2 of 8



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Mr. Ty Gorman, 2843 Parkwood Blvd. Kansas City, KS 66104, told how he got here
with Sierra Club and Groundwork NRG to talk about climate change adaption and some issues
he knew about in the energy world. There was a volunteer group called ECHO and he was
asked to facilitate it.

The issues were putting an end to unsafe shutoffs of electricity, lowering the bills and
access to federal money for programs. They had spoken to the U.G. and were working with
some of the Commissioners.

Ms. Mulvany Henry thanked Mr. Gorman for his continued efforts to educate the Board
and asked if he had listened to the Work Session meeting earlier.

He stated that he had not.

She informed him that in that meeting the Board had formed a committee of a subset of
our Board Members and established some ground rules for meeting with the representatives of
all groups. They wanted to go about it without excluding anyone from the community.

Mr. Gorman said on February 28 they were having an organizer volunteer meeting so he
would reach out to us.

Dr. Evelyn Hill, 640 Washington Blvd. said she was a member of the Justice and
Equality Coalition. She thanked Mr. Johnson and his team for meeting with them several times.
They brought forward several issues they felt were inequitable for their community members.
Several of those items they had put in a Power Point which addressed policies BPU had:
disconnection and restoration, cold and hot weather rule and security deposits. BPU had a policy
that if you had a low credit score you were a higher risk and had to pay more for the security
deposit. She said no other utility company in the metro area has that policy. She was glad to see
that BPU had a policy on health, provisions for life saving medical machines. She would like
to see us expanding that. She is on the school board and homeless kids were due to high BPU
bills, deposits, fees on both sides; BPU and UG. She would like to work with BPU to get some
policies changed and generate new ideas.

Mr. Johnson said he appreciated her coming. They had exchanged information and he
thought they made a lot of progress towards resolving some of the concerns when she and
Avenue of Life came in together. There’s a letter going out to all the other non-profit groups to
come in and have a luncheon. He wants to sit down with staff and have those conversations.
Are we assisting the community and what are those agencies hearing and he wants to have
conversations with the Board about deposits and things like that and make some adjustments.

Page 3 of 8



REGULAR SESSION ~-WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Ms. Lisa Walker Yeager, Wyandotte County, said they’ve been dealing with PILOT tax
50 they put that in front. She thanked Mr. Johnson for attending the meeting with Community
Conscious Network. Not only are the fees astronomical but you can only get assistance once a
year. You have a high summer bill and a high winter bill and if you have health issues you need
assistance more than once a year. If you’re in the hospital you don’t want to worry about your
power being shut off.

When we have meetings with the not for profits she wonders how much money they are
getting in to how much they are giving out. If you’re getting $2 million but only giving out
$500,000, that’s not beneficial. Another problem in Wyandotte County is that with Catholic
Charities every Monday you can only call between 8 and 9 am. It’s designed not to allow
people to get in. She suggested to Mr. Johnson that when he talked to the Board Members they
should have one company schedule on Monday, one on Tuesday and another on Wednesday.

Ms. Mulvany Henry asked if she was referring to assistance from agencies or BPU.

Ms. Yeager said it was the assistance agencies and that BPU did a very good job of
returning your call, she’s never had a problem with that, it’s that the BPU policy is to just assist
the one time a year.

Ms. Susan Stevens from 4018 Silver KCK 66106 said she was really enthused. She is

with Community Conscious Action Network and thanked us for moving forward on that.

Item #6— BPU Utility Assistance Proosram — Todd Jordan w/ United Way

Mr. Todd Jordan, Vice President, Community Impact & Executive Director of United
Way of Greater Kansas City gave a presentation of BPU and United Way Utility Assistance
Programs. (See attached Power Point).

Mr. Jordan answered questions from the Board.

MTr. Johnson mentioned that if houses aren’t properly insulated the bills could he higher so a lot
of factors are involved.

Page 4 of 8



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )

) 8§

CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #7— General Manager / Staff Reports

il.

iil.

December 2022 Financials: Ms. Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief
Administrative Officer, reviewed the Preliminary December 2022 Financials with the
Board. (See attached PowerPoint.)

KMEA Board Appointments: Mr. Johnson said just like Western Fuels, KMEA also asks
in their bylaws to get Board approval. Mr. Jeremy Ash, Chief Operating Officer, asked
for approval from the Board for Resolution # 5283 appointing Jeremy as Director # 1,
Jerin Purtee as Director # 2 for Jerin Purtee and Bill Johnson as Alternate. Mr. Ash said
at some point when they get Nearman more organized they would bring Glen Brendel,
Executive Director Electric Production, into the appointments. Motion was made by Mr.
Bryant, seconded by Ms. Gonzales. The motion unanimously carried.

Miscellaneous Comments: Mr. Johnson informed the Board that Thursday, February 16,
at 4:00 p.m. the U.G. has called a Special Executive Session to talk about the applicants
that applied for the County Administrator position. If there is anything that comes out of
that meeting and he is able to follow up, he certainly will.

He also reported that at the end of February, Executive Assistant, Jenny Burley-
Krenzer would be retiring. She started as a temporary employee in the Marketing
Department at 700 Minnesota Ave. in 2001. In 2002 she got on at the Service Center
Garage as a Garage Clerk. After a short stint there she bid on and transferred into the
Economic Development Secretary and then to Administrative Assistant. In 2008 she
became Executive Assistant to General Manager Don Gray.

In 2013 she was the first recipient of the Everyday Hero Employee Recognition
Award.

Mr. Johnson said she was an avid animal person and had lived in Key West,
Florida. She has a bubbly personality, knows where things go and how things are and is
helpful and an inspiration. She handles customer calls and then follows up to the Board.
Mr. Johnson said when he first moved into the General Manger position she helped him
get acclimated. He pointed out that she eats weird food and always customizes her
order.

Page 5 of 8



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) S
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Mr. Johnson wished her well in her retirement. There will be a get together in
the Board Room on Tuesday, February 28" from 2:30 — 4:30 p.m. Ms. Burley-Krenzer
addressed the Board and spoke about how much she enjoyed her time at the BPU.

Item #8 - Board Comments

Ms. Gonzales said that she would miss Ms. Burley-Krenzer because when she got
customer complaints and calls Ms. Burley-Krenzer was the first person she would call. She
thanked her fellow Board Members for the conversation and discussion in the Work Session.
It’s helpful and she appreciates that. She was glad for the update with the United Way and
stated it was always good to hear how much our employees give and how much she
appreciates it.

Mr. Groneman thanked everyone that came that evening and addressed the Board.
We’ve not always had the community engagement in the past so that was good to see. He was
glad to see people stay until the end of the meeting. He offered congratulations to Ms. Burley-
Krenzer on her retirement and stated she will be missed by him and the rest of the Board.

Mr. Haley appreciated Ms. Austin’s report on the Financials. He thanked the United
Way for their presentation. He thanked the public who came to the meeting and spoke, most
of them whose names are realized by us and he appreciated their diligence. For all who
came and called in he wanted them to know that this BPU Board was turning the corner
slowly but addressing the issues such as the BPU bills. He appreciated their advocacy.
He thanked Ms. Burley-Krenzer for her years of service. He said she made him feel
welcome when he first came in a year ago. He welcomed back Mr. Groneman.

Mr. Milan commented on the input from the staff. He especially appreciated the
information from the United Way. He stated the most important thing that night was that 10
years ago they started a Hero Program among the employees to find out what employee would
serve in that capacity and as a result of that we had a contest to find out who reached that goal
and criteria to be a hero. A lot of consideration went into it. They picked Ms. Burley-Krenzer
and he wanted the Board to make a motion and a resolution that Ms. Burley-Krenzer be the
first and only hero.

Mr. Groneman said they were talking about starting up another program again.

Mr. Johnson said they were going to come up with some type of recognition program.

Page 6 of 8



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Mr. Milan said congratulations to Ms. Burley-Krenzer, he appreciated her service and
thank you.

Ms. Mulvany Henry said that she moved the Board to proclaim Ms. Jenny Burley-
Krenzer to be a lifetime member of the Hero Program. Ms. Gonzales seconded and roll call
was taken and the motion unanimously carried. Ms. Burley-Krenzer received applause. Ms.
Mulvany Henry echoed what the other Board Members had said. She thanked the public for
continuing to show up and voice their concerns on behalf of themselves and others in their
cormmnunity, the most vulnerable in the community. We hear you. We are trying to do
something different this go around. Mr. Milan had said in the Work Session that this was
something that had been attempted before at the BPU in the early 80’s. Hopefully the BPU
can resurrect that and do it on a meaningful basis. We can’t do it without your input.

Mr. Bryant said every time he walks through the door to come down to meetings, he’s
amazed at all he learns through staff reports and public comments and he appreciates the input
from all the different avenues of communication. 1t helps him forim wise decisions. He
thanked Ms. Burley-Krenzer.

Item #9 — Executive Session

Ms. Angela Lawson, Deputy Chief Counsel proposed a motion for adoption as followed:

“I move that after taking a five minute break the Board go into Executive Session for 20 minutes
in the Board rooms to discuss confidential matters related to review of the general manager, a
personnel matter of nonelected personnel as justified under the exception in the Kansas Open
Meetings Act; and that the General Manager William Johnson and Deputy Chief Counsel
Angela Lawson, be present to participate in the discussion, all others to be dismissed from the
room and electronic and telephonic transmissions to cease, and that we and reconvene in open
session returning to both electronic and telephonic broadcasting at 7:52 P.M. in the Board Room
to either take action in an open session or to adjourn.

A motion to go into Executive Session and reconvene at 7:52 P.M. was made by Mr. Bryant,
seconded by Mr. Groneman. Roll call was taken:

Ms. Gonzales — yes

Mr. Groneman — yes

Page 7 of 8



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023
STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS

CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Mr. Haley — no

Mr. Milan — yes

Ms. Mulvany Henry — yes

Mr. Bryant - yes

The motion carried.

Mr. Haley, who was attending via Zoom, left the meeting.

At 7:52 P.M. the meeting returned to Open Session.

Ttem #10 — Adjourn

At 7:53 P.M. a motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Milan and
unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 8 of 8












































































































EXCERPT OF BYLAWS OF KANSAS MUNICPAL ENERGY AGENCY
ARTICLE V
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 5.1. Selection of Directors. The property and business of the Agency shall be managed by the Board of
Directors of the Agency. The Board of Directors shall consist of two (2) Directors for each Member, provided that there
shall be not less than seven (7) Directors. The Directors shall be selected by the governing bodies of the Members. In the
event that the number of Members is less than seven (7), each Member shall be represented by the number of Directors
which would constitute a Board of Directors of not less than seven {7) Members, provided that each Member shall select
the same number of Directors, Each Member must designate the two {2) Directors as “Director-1” and “Director-2".

The term of each Director shall be for a period of two (2) years except that the initial term of a number equal to
one half of the Directors, comprised of those individuals designated as Director-2, shall be selected to a term of one {1)
year. Any Director selected by a Member may be removed at any time by the Member selecting the Director.
Each Director so selected shall {a) reside within the territory served by the electric utility of the selecting Member;
or (b) be an employee of the selecting Member. Each Director shall meet all other requirements of the Act and the
Agreement. Any such selection (other than a replacement selection) shall oceur prior to the annual meeting of the
Agency. Written evidence of selection shall be forwarded by the City Clerk or other authorized official of the Member
to the Agency in writing prior to the annual meeting. Each Director shall continue in office until a successor is selected
in accordance with this Article V.

Section 5.2. Voting Powers. Each Member shall be entitled to one Director vote on the Board of Directors which
shall be equal to the vote of every other Member. Such vote shall be cast on behalf of the Member by Director-1 of such
Member, if present; if such Director-1 is not present then by Director-2. Other than actions required in Article Xif hereof,
all actions of the Board of Directors shall be made upon affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors entitled to vote and
voting on such action.

Section 5.3. Compensation. Except as may be specifically authorized by the Board of Directors, no Director
shall receive payment from the Agency for any time spent in attending meetings of the Board of Directors or
otherwise conducting business of the Agency. To the extent that funds are available, the Board of Directors, the
Executive Committee, or the General Manager may authorize payment of expenses for travel in connection with the
business of the Agency for other than meetings of the Board of Directors pursuant to the Act.

Section 5.4. Vacancies. In the event of a vacancy on the Board of Directors the appropriate Member shall select
an individual to fill such vacancy for the remainder of the term in accordance with the same procedure as set forth for
the selection of the initial Director. Written evidence of selection shall be provided to the Agency before voting
privileges will take effect.

Section 5.5. Removal or Resignation. A Director may be removed only by the governing body of the
Member selecting such Director. Any Director may resign by providing notice to the governing body of the Member the
Director represents. The governing body shall certify to the Agency such removal or resignation of a Director.

Section 5.6. Successor Director. Upon removal or resignation of a Director, a successor Director will be selected
by the governing body in the same manner as the original Director was selected, and the successor Director will
be certified by the governing body to the Agency in the same manner as the original Director was certified. The
successor Director shall serve for the remainder of the unexpired term of the original Director, subject to the rights of the
governing body and such successor Director under Section 5.5 of these Bylaws,

Section 5,7. Alternates. Each Member shall designate an Alternate or Alternates for the Director in the same
manner as the Directors are designated. In the event any Director is unable to attend a meeting, any duly
appointed Alternate may substitute at the meeting of the Board of Directors for such Director. The Member shall provide
the Agency with written notification of the selection of such Alternate or Alternates. In the event neither Director
designated by the Member is present, the Alternate may vote on behalf of such Member unless the governing body
of the Member has specifically prohibited the Alternate from voting on the Member's behalf. f more than one Alternate
is designated by the Member, the governing body shall specify in its designation the order in which the Alternates shall
have voting rights on behalf of the Member.

Adapted by the 8aard of Directors vy 3, 2019



General Manager/Staff Reports
Agenda Item #VII



Prelim January 2023
Financials



5 g parstany
16 ey
BTGl {Em R

DENPIGHD

USSR T Ao Ao

ﬁ@@@@%




6z

9t

$Z

2!

H

O~ O

SJUIUIISIAUY PUE YSE]) JO JUIWIIE)G
9BEIIA0D) IDIAIIG )GA(]
SILDIA [BUBUL]
€707 ‘1€ A&tenuep nayy [ Arenuep — Liewimg uonon.IIsuo))
£707 ‘1¢ {tenuep nayy [ Aenuep ~ vostredwo)) 198png
jur) Suneradp Iere
nupn 3uneiadQ) ouyoeg
suupn) Suneradp 1y

§19SSY JAN Ul 93uBY)) pue sasuadxj ‘SInuUIAIY JO SJUIWS) L)S

199Y§ ddueleq pajIpnel() SuIUIqUIO)

SLNHLNOD A0 H'TdV.L

sjuswalelg |eloueul
£z20z frenuep Aleuiwijaig

P———

SHILITILA D1IT190d A0 qiIVOod
SYSNV ‘ALID SYSNV














































































Yo

OVI/0:1D
ugsny 10 1o

TP

JANS £r'g £8°C $TOTZ/PRUIqQUIOD £TOT/I9IBM 0£0Z/01199]H ~ 95BI2A0D)
9T 886 LY 109°822°8 8.€°899 v 3 ALlIBg - 931AISS 1qa( [BNUUY WRWIXEIA]
16T 61°C 8T TOT/PRUIQUIOD  €ZOT/IBM 670T/QLN02[H - 988I2A0D
S8TrTP TS TPISSPL LT 9¢0°088 v $ 199 [BI0 L ~ 9D1AI2S 19T [ENUUY WNWIXEBIA
LY9°5Z£°TS1 3L 1¥L ST £98°¢85°971 $ sanuaAy 18N
(£££°915°677) (900°855°27) (L9£°810°861) sasuadxy aourusjuiepy pue Suneredo
020°Z06°LLE 06.°662°CS 0£T209vZE $ SANUDADY

€C0T "1¢ ATenUB]  TZOC 1€ ATBNUE[  £Z0C ¢ ATenus[
Suipug spUOIN Z1  Sulpug SYIUON g]  SUIPUF SYIUON Z]
pauiquiol) 191 211)03[g

"sasuadxy sourUSIUIEIA pue uoneled() ssa] “WASAS AJ[iIM] A1 JO SANUDADY 3] SUBSW _ SANUIADY 19N,

1apenb
lepusieo yons ypum Fuipus poltad yiuow aAjam) o1 107 waisAS A1) Y] JO SINUSADY JON 2} 2Je|nojes o] patinbar st sanupn) o1qng Jo preog
Y3 "aIMu2pu] ISN1]Y, PAILISTY PUB POPUSIY PUOSS 2L} ut pauyyap se sarnjuapu] [eiusws|ddng Aue pue g1(z °g Jequiana(g Jo se SAIID91I9 V10T °]
sunf o Se pajep ‘AINUIpU )Sn1], PaAlRISIY PuB PSPUSWY puoISg L Ul pauygap se “saimuepuy (eusiusjddng oy Jo sjuswannbai oy 03 Burpioooy

£20g Arenuef
PSpUH UOA 2], 10
SSMINI( dNqnd Jo preog
2} 10Y senUaAY 19N 10
Uone[no[e.) JO 21BOIIIIS))



LC

"$3NU3A31 FUNRISd0-UOU SNO3UE]|IISIUI ISYI0 PUR SWUHULSIALI
uo 5319l ‘Jesodsip yse ‘[ejual jusuiyoene 9]0d/Iamo) s33) JOSUUODSIPAIUUGD ‘SIUNOISIP PalajIoy SOpN[aUt 13410 pue swooul jsalAuy  (Z)
swoaul Junersdo-uou 1syjo pue uondsloxd a1y ‘sspuioyine orgnd ‘SunySiy KemySiy :sapnjou safes gy ()  S:ON

"SaNURARL AJeuipioeIixXa spnjoul jou [{eys pue £oijod asueinsu) ajeudosdde ue £q pai1saod wasAg A a4l Aq paunoug s50]
Aue 0} padser yum pred spasoord spnjout jou jjeys was) yans Ing ‘spaasold puog WOy peAlIap pung Uolanisuo;) 24} ur satuow 3504 1daoxa ($10z ‘ounr psiep
1SN JO 2muapu] ay1) ulaay paysijqeisa spun,j a1 Jo AUe Ul SIIUOW JO JUILUISIAUL SY} WOY PIALISP WO [[e $apnjaul pue ‘wAsAS A1 yons Jo spnpod
pue S30IAIDS JO 3SN PUE 3[eS Y] Woy pue wysAg L[] 2y) o1 19adsal yim 149 241 Aq pasoduu ssSreys pue sajel Bwipnjaw ‘wasAg AN oYl woy ndg
2yl Aq paA[aDal SANUIASI [{e SIPN[oUl PUB “aSImIayio 10 walsAg Anpnr) ayr o3 susuIanaq 2o siedal ‘sjuswafiejua ‘suolsusiXe Woy Sunmsal ayeym Josiey)

wed 1ayio o 12forg Aue 10 wasAS AN oyl Jo joRuEs pue uonelado “uswaSeurt oy woy [1dd 24t AQ PIALISP SNUSADI PUB WODUI |[E UBSUI , SINUDADY,,

(1L SV4) waunsn(pe uoneljiouedal (O39) wauoduio) a1ey] ASIaug 10§ pals)op AMUIADY 4

0Z0°T06°LLE 06L°667°¢S 0€£7°709%T¢ $ SINUIAYY [BI0],

(61£02) - {(61£02) sulUIRY pun, UOHONIISUOD) 1§57

- - - +dd/19N] - 2NUIASY paIdJa(]
" - - J2UBNSS] JO 1S00) puog

798°€1L°01 T99°1€4'C 007°78T°8 (2) 3930 pue swIooUY 353191U]
FSE°LLYLE SLT6E6°S 6L9°8€6°1¢ SoXe], JO N2l uf wawike
8898181 1SS PEE’l LTETSI LY Sa]BS 9[LSIOYM
018086 852919 T5019¢ (1) sajes 1010
9e0°LPL T SH8°CI9 I61°%€1°11 S]o0Y2S
955°05H 8¢ 90£°867°9 0S2°T61°28 S9]BS [elnsnpu]
68T CLY ST LSOC0L 1Y TETOLL 9T §3[eS [BlOJaILLIOY)
7S6°166°111 9££ €08 7T 819°88.°98 $ SIS [BHUIPISIY

SONUAASY ANi(] (810

€C0T TeATBNURl  TZOT 1€ ATBNUE[  TZOZ 1€ Afenuef
Buipug syo g1 Buipug SYluoN Z]  Sutpug SO 7]
pauiquioyy 121B M 21110919

SHONHAHYH
[ 31qIyxH




18

"NdE 241 Aq pazifendes a1e gosym ‘Jery pue saxe; Futpnjout ‘swisy Auadosd yons pue ‘wosAg £njun sy Jo soredoad Lue o uenisodsip
o410 10 UofiEa[EAdl ‘UOKEDIISSEIR! JUIWUOPUEGE ‘D{ES 3Y) WIOLJ SIUSURINAI 10 0} SJuawdAcIdw! 1o SUOISUSIX® ‘SJUBULIONDq ‘Siuswase(das ‘suonippe [exdeo 10] I0Ja1ay) opew $23IBD 10 SIS08
‘NdT 2y 1o L7y 2g) Jo $32UpPANGIpUL Jayto Jo papueq Jo uoneziowe Jo jediound Jo Juswked oy doJ sodieys pue soBIeyd Jsa93ul “$3]qEfuriul JO uoneZIMoWE ‘Swayl 9suddys Fupnoso Apusnbaygur
10 jensnun £|feita1ew 1o AIEUIPIORIXD JOJISY) $9AI3SDI1 10 5ITIBYD S0UISH0SG0 10 UOTEIdRIdIp ‘SaXE) JO N31| Ut SpuswAed opnjout J0u op sosuadxq aouruapniely pue uonetad -sajdiound Sununocaoe
pardadse Ajjerauad giim souepiodoe u sasusdxg sourusluely pue Sunesad( 9q 0) PLIIPISUCD SIE YOIgA SIS0D 1030 AUC pue “I2puUnaIay HMSNAT U jo aso Suipnjau ‘Aieanpy Aue Jo sasusdxon
pue 522 oy ‘sodpouird Fununosoe poidasoe Ajjesousd sepun wesAS A1 2y o) slqeoofe Apadord Jusixa a1 o) ‘ve £q Jo A1) a1 Jo soueuiplo £q N4g 2y Aq pred aq o) pannbar suonedtqo
10 sasttod¥a Juaumd Aue ‘0314198 uoissiwsuen pue Jamod paseysnd Jo 3500 21 ‘51500 jan] ‘S3TAEYD [EIUAWLISAOS IoYj0 ‘(ooaoys naf ur suewAed Surpnioul jou Ing) SHXE] ‘SI0[AIDS [EIIUYI] PUEB
Junnsued [EUCHIPPE JO 1500 AU puE sasuAXD pue seey KI0sIAPE Jeduzuy pue Fupuncode ‘Suiasuidus qeFa) ‘swnpumd soueInsul ‘sasuadya Justwainal pue uoisuad ‘uonezyendsoy ‘yipeoy ssakojdu
‘sogem pue soliejes ‘siudwasedas pue sfemaus: ‘sitedar Areuipio Jo $1509 ay3 Jo juawAed oy 10y Kressasou Aouowt Jje Juipnpour ‘pannbal A[2ietpatunn taty 30U S1 Yaiya Jo justaied sy ‘swen yans

10j OPISE 195 2 01 pastnbal AjqeuosEaI ADUOW JO STUNOWE ‘0F PANIWIE 10U Ing “Buipnjour ‘WsAS AN 2y sieiado pue wiEuew 01 AIRSSo05U Spury oy supdw Sasuddxe aoueUSIUIR[A] Pue uoieiade),,

"SpUOg 3NUADY TFUIPULISING U0 3SUFXD 1S2IAIUT SHPRIINT,

ELE'9LE'STT 900°8SE LT LI9E'R10'861 $ sasuodxz] 2ouruniuey %9 Funesadp
(bS6'LLPLE) {€LT°656°C) {6L9°8¢6°1€) S3XE] JO M1 U] Juawile s3]
(LTT'sg9'1h) (061°pZE'8) {Le0‘1eg’ee) uonezipowy puy uonedaidaq sso

PEC GOL PO Iwrierts £80°997°¢92 $ 4Sasuadyq Suneiadg

TCOT TE Aeraef
Burpug syuoy i
pauiquio)

€207 T¢ Amenuep
Buipug syjuoy 7}
IEM

£20T "1£ Alenuep

Buipug SyuoN Z1
oLI793[]

SHSNHIXH HONVNALINIVIN ANV SNOILVIAJO

T MQIIXA



oc

£00-00T-20 A31|0d 3UI|IBPING [RIDUBULY N4 SY3 Ul PSUYSIQEISA ST SPUNJ 9AIS$aI 3Y1 puny Ajjnj 0 Papasu JUNoWe ay3 sjuasaidal 2IUEJEq Ysed pajdulsaiun ayl

{6E0'66T bT) (850'SST'T) 3 {186°ct0eT) 3

705'46T'86 78E'7609T s 021's0T 2L s

000009 000°psT 000'05E

9€9°85t"1 2 Ste'TTE'T 695097

888'ELSTT 8BB'ELSTT -

00E555°9 00£'9t9 000°£06°S

LB0'808 - L6808

£25'8TL - £75'8TL

000°009°T 000°05T 000'05E'T

£42'95T'6 - ££2°95T's

000'062"9 000'0629 -

BEE'LETHE ESY'LETY 088'6t0°0T

000'00T°T 000'02z 000’088

000°000°T 000’002 000°008

9th'6EEL 06.°66T'T $ 959°6£0'9 s

£9v'866'cL beE'LE6' e 3 6ET'T90'6Y 3

(LET9TH ST} (L22°2L0"D) {096'cte'Th)

aTaA- ) 780618 ZL1'895'6E

o1 T0'SL 6T5°06T'¥Z s LT6'9E8°0S S
pauquIoy 1RJEM FIIRETE]

£20¢ 'T& Aenuer

€20¢ ‘1€ Adenuef

€20¢ ‘Tt AEnuef

SINIWLSIANI ANV HSYD

SALLITILN 21719Nd 40 Q¥vod

SIUILWISBAU} PUB YSED PAINISIUN

SUCHILIISSY |e10]
pung juswdojaaag J1WOU0IT
juawalinbay aasasay Juizesad Suinieway
Juawdojaaag WaisAs
EZ0T 10§ 2A1959Y uoRINIIsUE;) uloduQ
YO0Z0Z PUng UoIONLSUO)
29107 pun{ uoiponnsuoD
pung A2uadlawy pue Juawaaoiduy
pund UoHezijiqels 31ey
pung uoinpsy 1920
pun. 92IAI3S 1G3(
dIoD SI9%I0M- BAIDS3Y BIUBINSU] 335
ANjlgen aliqng - 2A1953Y IIUBINSY] Ja5
1s0d3Q Jawoisny

SIUSLUISTAU] PUB USBD JO SUCIIILIISTY

€T/1E/T JO SE 5]ulWISIAY] PUE YSE)
3)eQ 01 134 SIUSLWARY yses

31BQ 03 Jeai s1divday use)

£7/T0/T0J05Y  S3uswisaau) pue ysed Juiuwdag



2023 Rate Hearing
Process



KUTAK ROCK LLP
DRAFT 02/23/2023

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
ON
PROPOSED
ELECTRIC AND WATER REVENUE CHANGES
AND ELECTRIC RATE CHANGES

BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES
OF THE UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF
WYANDOTTE COUNTY/KANSAS CITY, KANSAS

On June 14, 2023, at 7 p.m., a Public Hearing will commence at the Board of Public Utilities
in the Board Room of'its 540 Minnesota Avenue, Kansas City, Kansas location to present to the Board
of Directors (the “Governing Body”) of the Board of Public Utilities and to Utility customers, the
BPU staff's proposed changes and revisions to the BPU's Water and Electric Rates. Public comments
concerning this proposal may be heard during the Public Hearing on June 14, 2023. The Public
Hearing will continue commencing at 9:00 a.m. on June 15, 2023, at the same location, and public
comments concerning this proposal may also be heard during the Public Hearing on June 15, 2023.
Testimony on the technical aspects will follow the conclusion of the Public Hearing commenced at
9:00 a.m. on June 15, 2023, and will continue until concluded.

See the BPU website for virtual meeting access information.

The Governing Body will not make a decision on the proposed electric and water revenue
changes until after the conclusion of the public hearing described in this Notice.

Financial data, supporting documents and analysis in possession of the BPU which
substantiate the reasonableness of the proposed revenue revisions are available in the office of the
Director of Accounting at the Board of Public Utilities, 540 Minnesota Avenue, Kansas City, Kansas
66101, (913) 573-9165.

BPU staff proposes the electric and water revenue revisions to (i) maintain financial integrity
of water and electric operations in accordance with the BPU's policy and requirements of the Trust
Indenture of the outstanding Bond issues and (ii) make certain other rate schedule adjustments
indicated to be needed by the associated revenue and cost of service studies and other analyses
which are underway in support of the proposed changes.

ELECTRIC

The BPU staff proposes modifications to the electric base rates which will increase electric
operating revenues from base rates over two years from revenues received under current base rates.
The BPU staff proposes to increase electric operating base rate revenues, on an annualized basis
for each 12 month period beginning July 1 of each year commencing July 1, 2023, approximately
2.5% 1n 2023 and approximately 2.5% in 2024. The changes individual customers will experience
may vary from the proposed annual increases, depending on the rates ultimately adopted to achieve
the proposed total revenue increase.



The methods used in the electric analyses are in accordance with the industry accepted
methods of allocating costs as kept in conformity with the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission's uniform system of accounts.

WATER

The BPU staff proposes modifications to the water rates which will increase water operating
revenues over three years from revenues received under current rates. The BPU staff proposes to
increase water operating revenues, on an annualized basis for each 12 month period beginning July 1
of each year commencing July 1, 2023, approximately 6.0% in 2023, approximately 6.0% in 2024
and approximately 6.0% in 2025. The changes individual customers will experience may vary
from the proposed annual increases, depending on the rates ultimately adopted to achieve the
proposed total revenue increase.

The methods used in the water analyses are in accordance with the industry accepted
methods of allocating costs.

ELECTRIC RATE CHANGES

The BPU staff proposes additional changes to the Rate Application Manual relating to
electric rates. The proposed changes include, but are not limited to, the following:

o Merging of the standard Residential and Residential Electric Heat classes into one
residential class that reflects the rate design of the current residential electric heating rate.

o Continuing the trend of increasing the Customer Charge to reflect cost of service and
recovery of more fixed costs through fixed charges.

e Modifying the Energy Rate Component (ERC) Rider to allow for additional recovery over
costs to build and maintain an ERC Reserve Fund.

e Creating a new Green Rider for large Commercial and Industrial customers that want to
procure energy with renewable attributes.

e Other language changes within the Rate Manual to align the language with current BPU
practice.

INTERVENTION

Any affected Utility customer wishing to intervene, appear at the public hearing, present
testimony of witnesses under oath, conduct cross examination of employees and representatives of
the BPU, present oral arguments and file written briefs in support of said customer's position must
file a petition for intervention pursuant to the Rules of Procedure for Rate Increase Hearing at least
forty-five (45) days prior to the scheduled hearing date and file and serve exhibits, list of witnesses,
and summaries of testimony and evidence at least thirty (30) days prior to the scheduled hearing date.



For information regarding this hearing, contact:

NAME: Randy Otting

TITLE: Director of Accounting

ADDRESS: 540 Minnesota Avenue, Kansas City, Kansas 66101
PHONE: (913) 573-9165

EMAIL: ratehearing@bpu.com

Please notify the Board of Public Utilities of any accommodation you may require, at (913)
573-9173.






as it deems justified pursuant to its findings and the evidence presented at the public
hearing.”

Under the Charter Ordinance, BPU has to publish notice of a public hearing at least ninety
(90) days before the hearing commences. At the time that the notice is published, the BPU staff
and the BPU engineering consultants will have prepared the financial data, supporting documents
and analysis which support the rate increase and rate design changes that the BPU staff will
propose to the Board, and will have this information available for review by the public upon
request as required by the Charter Ordinance.

There is a public portion and a technical portion of the rate hearing. A hearing officer will
preside over the hearing and handle the functions of an administrative law judge. A court reporting
service will record the proceedings.

At the public portion of the hearing, the staff and BPU consultants present staff’s
recommendation for adjustments to the rates and comments from the public are heard. There is
generally an evening session and a morning session the following day for the public portion of the
rate hearing.

In the technical portion of the hearing, technical testimony from the BPU staff and
consultants, and from the intervenors if any party has filed a petition to intervene before the
deadline for filing, is presented. The technical portion of the hearing generally begins at the
conclusion of the morning public hearing. During the technical portion, parties will introduce pre-
filed testimony, offer exhibits, and may cross-examine each other’s witnesses and offer any other
evidence felt necessary by each party.

Any affected Utility customer wishing to intervene, appear at the public hearing, present
testimony of witnesses under oath, conduct cross examination of employees and representatives of
the BPU, present oral arguments and file written briefs in support of said customer's position must
file a petition for intervention,

The BPU Board approved revised Rules of Procedure for Public Hearing on Rate Increases
in 2016. The Rules of Procedure require that a petition for intervention be filed at least seventy (70)
days prior to the scheduled hearing date, unless the BPU agrees to a request by a Customer for an
extension of time to file a petition to intervene. BPU staff is responsible to file the initial pre-filed
written testimony of BPU staff and consultants when available, and is expected, but not required,
to file such pre-filed written testimony not less than seventy (70) days prior to the scheduled date
for commencement of the hearing. Intervenors are required to file data requests at least sixty (60)
days prior to the scheduled hearing date; that time limit can be extended upon BPU’s agreement. The
Procedures require that intervenors file and serve pre-filed testimony, proposed exhibits, proposed
witnesses, and summaries of testimony other than pre-filed testimony at least thirty (30) days prior to
the scheduled hearing date; that time limit can be extended upon BPU’s agreement. (Extension
requests are approved or denied by the BPU staff, although a Customer can appeal to the hearing
officer if the request was denied.) BPU staff can then file rebuttal testimony in response to the
intervenors’ testimony. The goal of these time requirements is to give more time for the BPU staff

2
4872-8408-6608.1



KUTAKROCK

and BPU consultants to have communications and exchanges of technical materials with intervenors
and their attorneys and consultants about the specifics of the proposal in advance of the hearing, so
that the positions of the parties are fully developed by the time of the hearing.

After completion of all public comment and technical evidence, the Hearing Officer will
turn the proceedings over to the Board for decision. The Board will receive all the testimony and
evidence presented in the hearing as well as final recommendations from the BPU staff and
intervenors. The Board will not make a decision on the proposed electric and water revenue and
rate design changes until after the conclusion of the public hearing,.

Board members can, of course, attend all or any portion of the public hearing, and are
encouraged to do so whenever possible. If a Board member cannot attend the entire hearing, it is
not a problem, as the full transcripts of the proceedings prepared by the court reporter will also be
provided to each Board member once the public comment and technical evidence is complete so
that each Board member will have all of the evidence. Board members who attend the hearing
will sit in the audience to listen to the evidence being presented, and will be introduced so that
people will know that such Board members are there, but will not be called upon to participate in
the hearing. The role of Board members comes at the end of the hearing, when the Board is called
upon to make decisions. As decision makers, the Board members should refrain from expressing
opinions about the proposed rates until all of the evidence has been presented during the public
hearing and the proceedings have been turned over to the Board for decision.

The Charter Ordinance requires the Board to make a decision within five (5) days of the
completion of the hearing. For that reason, the hearing is not concluded until the Board is ready
to make a final decision. It is good practice to have the Board’s final decision rendered in a written
document that is presented to the Board for approval, such as an Order setting out the Board’s
findings and conclusions.

A party that has intervened and participated in the rate proceedings has the right to file suit
in Wyandotte County District Court, no later than thirty (30) days after the final decision of the
Board is rendered, seeking a review of the Board’s decision. (Someone who simply presented a
statement in the public hearing for or against the proposed rates but did not intervene in the
proceedings is not a party and cannot file suit.) The court has the power to vacate or set aside the
Board’s decision if it determines the findings of the Board do not substantiate the reasonableness
of the proposed rate increase or that the finding are contrary to law. There is also a provision
allowing a rate increase to be stayed or suspended pending the outcome of the case, although the
stay can be lifted if BPU objects and presents evidence as to the validity of its rate decision. In
order for a stay to remain in place after the objection, the court must issue an order continuing the
stay which contains “a specific finding based upon evidence submitted to the court and identified
by reference thereto, that petitioner would probably prevail on the merits that the Board's rate
decision was unlawful or unreasonable.” There is also the possibility of an appeal to the court of
appeals following the district court decision.

4872-8408-6608.1



4842-7253-33C1.3

KANSAS CITY, KANSAS
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

RULES OF PROCEDURE
FFOR

PUBLIC HEARING ON RATE INCREASES

REVISED 2016



ARTICLE

TABLE OF CONTENTS
KANSAS CITY, KANSAS
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES
RULES OF PROCEDURE
FOR
PUBLIC HEARINGS ON RATE INCREASES

TITLI

L
II.
IIL

IV.

VI

VII.

PREFACE

CODE OF ETHICS
DEFINITIONS

NOTICE REQUIREMENTS

REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL FILINGS
Section A. Form and Size
Title
Copies
Filing Method
Time of Filings for Formal Docket
Service of Process — Method of Service
Computation of Time

QHETOw

PARTIES TO THE PROCEEDINGS

Section A. Requirements for Intervention
Petitions to Intervene ~ Form
Rulings on Petitions to Intervene
Intervenors
Limited Appearances
Hearing Officer — Duties,
Responsibility and Authority
G. Rulings by the Hearing Officer

MET 0w

ACCESS TO INFORMATION
Section A. Preliminary Conference
Exchange of Evidence
Discovery
Informal Discovery
Formal Discovery
Formal Demand for Information
Timeliness of Formal Demand
Timeliness to Provide Information

mTOmmdow

PAGE

(8}

SN U PO FC RN UT RS O

) Lhbh L L B

€2 G0 -] =1 =1 =1 v N Oh



VIIL

IX.

XL

XII

4842-71253-3301.5

I. Inability to Comply with Discovery
I. Hearing for Compliance with Discovery
K. Ruling on Motion for Compliance

PROCEEDINGS AND DOCKETS

Section A. Secretary’s Formal File
Rejection of Documents
Opening
Order of Presentation
Record of Proceedings

mYOow

EVIDENCE

Section A. Form and Admissibility
Objections
Offer of Proof
Witnesses
Documentary Evidence

mO 0w

RULES

BOARD DETERMINATION
Section A. Decision
B. Service of Board Determinations

CONTINUANCES
APPENDIX A

10
10
11

11



ARTICLE I

PREFACE

The following rules of procedure (hereinafter referred to as “Rules™) before the Kansas
City, Kansas Board of Public Utilities (hereinafter referred to as the “Board™) were promulgated
and adopted by the Board on April 15, 1981, and revised from time to time, including as
approved on August 17, 2016. These Rules are issued under the authority contained in Charter
Ordinance No. CO-5-01, as may be amended and supplemented from time to time (the “Charter
Ordinance”) of the Unified Government of Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas (the
“Unified Government”). These Rules apply fo rate consideration proceedings conducted
pursuant to the Charter Ordinance.

The purpose of these Rules is to govern the proceedings which are required for the
consideration of utility rate increases for water and/or electricity.

Nothing in these Rules limits, modifies or changes the existing procedures of the Board at
its regular sessions pursuant to the Charter Ordinance, the laws of the State of Kansas and the
General Rules and Regulations of the Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas.

It is the policy of the Board that records and prepared studies and analyses of its
operations which are relevant to the rate considerations are open to public inspection upon
reasonable request. However, accounts of individual customers are the private and confidential
information of the customer which will not be released without the notarized written consent of
the customer.

All communications should be addressed to the Office of the Secretary of the Board (or
other BPU office as indicated by the BPU in connection with a rate hearing proceeding), Board
of Public Utilities, 540 Minnesota Avenue, Kansas City, Kansas 66101.

ARTICLE II

CODE OF ETHICS

Any person who signs any filing, petition, motion or brief, appears at a proceeding, or
transacts business with the Board or its designated Hearing Officer in the rate hearing proceeding
agrees to comply with the laws of this state and these Rules; to maintain due respect to the Board
or its Hearing Officer; and never to mislead the Board or its Hearing Officer or BPU staff by an
artifice or false statement of fact or law. Any person who, on behalf of another interest or
interests, signs any filing, petition, motion or brief, appears at a proceeding or transacts business
with the Board, the Hearing Officer or BPU staff, by such act represents that he or she is
authorized to do so. Amny person violating these Rules may be excluded, at the discretion of the
Hearing Officer, from the rate hearing, and any presentation, written or oral testimony made in
violation of these Rules may be stricken from the record in the Proceeding.

4§42-7253-3301.5



ARTICLE III

DEFINITIONS
As used in these Rules:

A. “Board” means the Board Members of the Kansas City, Kansas Board of Public
Utilities.

B. “BPU” means the Kansas City, Kansas Board of Public Utilities and its staff
serving Kansas City, Kansas.

C. “Customer” means any person, entity, state or federal agency to which electric
energy or water is sold by BPU.

D. “Hearing Officer” refers to the Board President or any person designated by the
Board to preside at a Proceeding.

E. “Intervenor” means any affected utility customer who intervenes in the
Proceeding and presents testimony of witnesses under oath, conducts cross-examination of
employees and representatives of the BPU, presents oral argument and files written briefs in
support of such utility customer’s position.

F. “Limited Appearance” means an appearance at which a person other than an
Intervenor may present a written statement or make an oral statement of position.

G.  “Party.” solely for purposes of these Rules, means BPU staff or any Intervenor
who has been granted status as a Party, but excludes any person making a Limited Appearance.
This definition is not intended to alter, and shall not be deemed to alter, the definition of “Party”
contained in the Charter Ordinance and the rights and obligations of such a “Party” as set forth in
the Charter Ordinance.

H. “Person” means an individual, corporation, governmental agency, association,
partnership, or any other legal or commercial entity.

L “Proceeding” means a public hearing on a utility rate increase under Kansas law
of which notice to the public and to Customers is given, is open to the public and is conducted
pursuant to these Rules.

J. “Writing” means electronic writing, handwriting, typewriting, printing,
photostating, photographing, and every means of recording, including letters, words, pictures,
sounds or symbols, or any combination thereof, and all papers, maps, magnetic or punch cards,
discs, drums, or other forms of recorded communication.

4812-7253-3301.5



ARTICLE IV

NOTICE REQUIREMENTS

Notices to Public: Notices of a Proceeding, when given for the purpose of informing the
public of proposed rate increases, shall:

(1)  Be given by publication in a newspaper(s) of general circulation in Kansas
City, Kansas, not less than ninety (90} days prior to commencement of the Proceeding.
Additional means may be adopted by the Board to notify the public of the Proceeding.

(2)  Include the time and place of the public hearing and the amount of the
proposed rate increase.

ARTICLE V

REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL FILINGS

Section A. Form and Size: All documents tendered for filing with the Board shall be in
Writing. Written documents shall be on one side of the paper only and shall be double spaced,
except that footnotes and quotations may be single spaced. Multipage documents shail be bound
or stapled on the left side. Reproductions may be made by any process, provided all copies are
clearly and permanently legible. All pleadings filed with the Board by or on behalf of an
Intervenor shall be signed by the Intervenor or its legal counsel and include the Intervenor’s
name and address, and if applicable the [egal counsel’s name and address.

Section B. Title: All documents presented for filing with the Board shall show the
caption for the Proceeding and title of the document.

Section C. Copies: There shall be filed with the Board an original and three conformed
copies of petitions to intervene and motions for compliance with discovery if said motions are
filed. Unless otherwise provided, there shall be an original and one copy of all other documents
submitted for filing with the Board.

Section D. Filing Method: Unless otherwise provided, all docwuments submitted for
filing with the Board shall be filed at the Office of the Secretary of the Board, Board of Public
Utilities, 540 Minnesota Avenue, Kansas City, Kansas 66101. Filings may be made by mail by
enclosing the document in a sealed envelope addressed as above and depositing it with the
United States Postal Service with first class postage prepaid. Documents may be signed and
filed electronically by electronically submitting the document to such email address as indicated
by the BPU in connection with a Proceeding. All documents filed electronically shall include the
words “Filed Electronically” on the first page of the document.

Section E. Time of Filings for Formal Docket: Filings will be accepted for docketing if
such filings are received at the Office of the Secretary of the Board or other BPU office as
indicated by the BPU in connection with a Proceeding on or before 5:00 P.M. on the date such
filing is due.

4842.7253-3301.3



Filings tendered by mail after said due date which are postmarked at least two days prior
to the due date for filing will be accepted for docketing if received no later than one day
following the due date. Filings tendered by express mail with guaranteed one day delivery will
be accepted for docketing if they are tendered by express mail with guaranteed one day delivery
and mailed at least one day prior to the due date. Filings tendered electronically are deemed filed
at the time received by the BPU.

Section F. Service of Process — Method of Service: All filings, documents,
comumunications, notices, or demands as between Intervenors, shall be served as follows:
(a) Service may be provided by mail by enclosing the document(s) in a sealed envelope
deposited with the United States Postal Service with first class postage prepaid on or before the
time specified for service, provided that such document is received as provided in Section E
above; (b) Service may be provided by mailing the document(s) by express mail with guaranteed
one day delivery on or before the time specified for service, provided that such document is
received as provided in Section E above; (c) Notwithstanding the provisions of (a) and (b} above,
service may be provided by personal delivery of the document(s) to a Party or at such Party’s
mailing address on or before the time specified for service,

Section G. Computation of Time: Unless otherwise provided, when the period is stated
in days, exclude the day of the event that triggers the period, count every day, including
intermediate Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, and include the last day of the period. If the
last day of the period is a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, the period continues to run until the
end of the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.

ARTICLE VI

PARTIES TO THE PROCEEDING

Section A. Requirements for Intervention: All affected Customers may file a petition to
intervene, Petitions to intervene should be filed with the Office of the Secretary of the Board or
other BPU office as indicated by the BPU in connection with a Proceeding.

Section B, Petitions to Intervene: Form: The petition to intervene shall be in writing;
shall set forth the name, address and telephone number of the person to whom communications
regarding the petition are to be sent; shall identify the Parties to the petition and their interests in
the Proceeding; shall state the position of the Parties with respect to the proposed rate increase;
and shall set forth in summary form the representations the Parties expect to make at the
Proceeding regarding the issues to be presented therein. Petitions to intervene shail comply with
the requirements of filings set forth in Article V. (See, e.g., Appendix A, attached hereto.) The
Hearing Officer in special cases and on a showing of good cause may waive any requirement of
this rule; provided that consent by BPU to an extension of time to file a petition to intervene as
described in the following paragraph is a requirement for such extension.

Petitions to intervene must be filed not less than seventy (70} days prior to the scheduled
date for commencement of the Proceeding, unless the BPU agrees to a request by a Customer for
an extension of time to file a petition to intervene.

4842-7253-3301.5



Section C. Rulings on Petitions to Intervene: Leave to intervene will be granted to any
affected Customer or such person’s authorized representative that files a timely petition to
intervene.

Section D. Intervenors: Formal participation in the Proceeding shall be limited to BPU
staff and to Intervenors and others who have been granted status of being a Party and who shall
have the full rights and duties of active participation. Intervenors and Parties shall have, but not
necessarily be limited to, the following rights: to present testimony, to cross examine employees
and representatives of the BPU, to present oral argument and file written briefs, and to ask, at the
discretion of the Hearing Officer, clarifying questions of participants without intervention. The
duties of Intervenors include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following: to file a timely
petition to intervene, to provide other Intervenors and Parties with exhibits, names of witnesses,
and summaries of proposed testimony prior to the Proceeding, to provide to other Intervenors
and Parties, upon request, information relevant to the issue to which his or her intervention
relates, to attend preliminary conferences which may be held by the Hearing Officer, and to be
present for the entire Proceeding(s) on the matter(s) on which he or she is intervening.

Section E. Limited Appearances: In any Proceeding, written comments may be
submitted, or an appearance may be made without filing a formal petition, if there is full
disclosure of the identity of the presenter and of the persons or entities in whose behalf the
appearance or comments are to be made, if the interests and positions of such persons or entities
are stated fairly, and if the contentions are relevant to the issues presented in the Proceeding.
Persons making Limited Appearances may be asked clarifying questions, as permitted by the
Hearing Officer, by Parties only; and, persons making Limited Appearances do not have a right
to advance distribution of testimony and exhibits, or a right to question or cross examine Parties
or Intervenors.

All cémments submitted by persons making Limited Appearances shall be included in the
record of the Proceeding for consideration by the Board. For this purpose, they are encouraged,
though not required, to submit written copies of their comments prior to or immediately
following the verbal presentation.

A person or entity in whose behalf a Limited Appearance is made in this manner may
participate in the Proceeding to the degree indicated by the Hearing Officer.

Section F. Hearing Officer - Duties, Responsibility and Authority: The Hearing Officer
shall apply and enforce these Rules and shall make any determination of construction or
interpretation thereof as may be necessary to assure that the substantive rights of the Parties are
preserved and protected. He or she shall conduct the course of the Proceeding efficiently and
expeditiously so that a clear and concise record of evidence in the Proceeding shall be developed.
He or she shall, upon request of the Board, furnish it with a summary of the evidence of the
record in any Proceeding; and, at the request of the Board or any Board Member, shall provide
assistance as requested by the Board in the preparation of a written decision setting forth a
determination by the Board.

The Hearing Officer may set dates of proceedings, and control the course thereof;
administer oaths; receive evidence; examine and call witnesses; hold appropriate conferences

4842.7253-3301.5



before or during proceedings; rule on all objections, motions and petitions; receive offers of
proof; hear arguments and fix the time for proceedings and filings of briefs and written
comments. He or she may take such other action as may be necessary and appropriate to the
discharge of his or her duties consistent with the laws of the State of Kansas.

To avoid unnecessary cumulative or repetitive evidence, the Hearing Officer may limit
the mamber of witnesses or the time for testimony upon a particular issue.

Section G. Rulings by the Hearing Qfficer: Rulings by the Hearing Officer on the
admissibility of evidence, all objections and motions, including but not limited to motions for
continuance, motions for compliance with discovery, postponement, or extension of time are
subject to review, modification or reversal by the Board.

ARTICLE VII

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Section A. Preliminary Conference: The Hearing Officer may hold a preliminary
conference for the purposes of formulating or simplifying the issues, arranging for the delivery
or exchange of proposed exhibits, witnesses, or summaries of testimony, limitation of number of
witnesses, and such other matters as may expedite orderly conduct and disposition of the
Proceeding,

Section B. Exchange of Evidence: Except as may be provided at a preliminary
conference or by directive set forth by the Hearing Officer, pre-filed testimony, proposed
exhibits, witnesses, and summaries of testimony shall be filed with the Office of the Secretary of
the Board or other BPU office as indicated by the BPU in connection with a Proceeding and
served upon all the Parties in the Proceeding as follows:

(1)  The BPU shall make available all pertinent financial data, supporting
documents, and analysis relating to the rate increase on the date the public notice of the
Proceeding is issued.

4

(2) BPU staff shall file the initial pre-filed written testimony of BPU staff and
consultants when available, and is expected, but not required, to file such pre-filed
written testimony not less than seventy (70) days prior to the scheduled date for
cornencement of the Proceeding.

AB42-7233-330L.5



(3) Intervenors shall file and serve, in accordance with Section F of Article V,
pre-filed testimony, proposed exhibits, proposed witnesses, and summaties of testimony
other than pre-filed testimony not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date scheduled for
the Proceeding; provided, however, that the time limit may be extended upon agreement
of the BPU.

(4)  BPU staff may file rebuttal testimony, which if filed is expected but not
required fo be filed not less than ten (10) days prior to the date scheduled for the
Proceeding.

This Rule shall apply to Intervenors only and not to persons making Limited
Appearances.

Section C. Discovery: All discovery shall be pursuant to the provisions of Article VII of
these Rules. No subpoenas or orders for the taking of formal depositions shall be issued.

Section D. Informal Discovery: Any Intervenor in a Proceeding shall have access to
information available to other Intervenors to the Proceeding if such information is relevant to the
issues to which his or her intervention in such Proceeding relates. BPU staff shall have access to
information available to an Intervenor in a Proceeding if such information is relevant to the
issues to which such Intervenor’s intervention in such Proceeding relates. No Intervenor shall
deny any such information or data in his or her possession to another Intervenor or to BPU staff
upon reasonable request or demand of the latter. Any artifice or design by an Intervenor
intended to forestall a Party from being able to obtain or make use of such information or data at
the Proceeding is inconsistent with the requirements of the Code of Ethics prescribed in
Article II, and the Intervenor may be subject to the Sanctions prescribed therein. It is expected
that Parties will make their requests informally upon another Party as early as possible, and in no
cvent later than the time required for a formal discovery request, in order to permit the
responding Party ample time to collect the information and data requested.

Section E. Fommal Discovery: The remaining Sections in this Article provide a formal
means for enforcing the right of an Intervenor to obtain information and data from BPU or from
another Intervenor or for BPU staff to obtain information and data from an Intervenor upon
reasonable demand. However, formal discovery rights will not be granted unless it is
demonstrated that reasonable and timely efforts were made to secure discovery informaily
pursuant to Section D.

Section F. Formal Demand for Information: Formal demand for information or data, or
for inspection of documents from a Party shall be in writing, showing good cause for the
production of the matters described in such demand, specifying the exact matters desired to be
produced or inspected, setting forth in full detail the relevance thereof to the issues involved in
the Proceedings, and stating that the Party being served has the desired matters in his or her
possession or under his or her control. Such demand shall be personally served upon the Party
on whom demand is made or delivered to the designated mailing address or electronic delivery
address, and a copy thereof shall be filed with the Office of the Secretary of the Board or other
BPU office as indicated by the BPU in connection with a Proceeding.

4842-7253-3301.5



Section G. Timeliness for Formal Demand: Timely demand upon BPU staff shall be
made not less than sixty (60) days prior to the scheduled date of the Proceeding; provided,
however, that the time limit may be extended upon agreement of the BPU.

Timely demand upon any Intervenor shall be made not less than thirty (30) days prior to
the scheduled date of the Proceeding; provided that such demand shall be timely if made within
ten (10) days after such Intervenor files its testimony pursuant to Section B (3) above even if less
than thirty (30) days prior to the scheduled date of the Proceeding. However, upon good cause
being shown the Hearing Officer may grant leave to file formal discovery requests described in
this paragraph after the time provided herein.

Section H. Timeliness to Provide Information: A Party shall endeavor to provide a
response to a reasonable and timely formal discovery demand within twenty (20) days of the
demand. Data, information or inspection reasonably and timely demanded of BPU staff shall be
provided to the Intervenor making such reasonable and timely demand during regular business
hours not less than seven (7) days prior to the scheduled date of the Proceeding, subject to
Section I below. Data, information or inspection reasonably and timely demanded of an
Intervenor shall be provided to the Party making such demand during regular business hours not
less than seven (7) days prior to the scheduled date of the Proceeding, subject to Section I below.

Section 1. Inability to Comply with Discovery: If a Party has been served with a
reasonable and timely demand with which he or she cannot comply within the time prescribed in
Section H, he or she shall notify the requesting Party personally or by telephone as soon as
possible and in any event no later than the applicable date set forth in Section H, and
concurrently shall in Writing set forth the facts and circumstances which prevent such
compliance in a communication delivered to the designated mailing address or electronic
delivery address of the requesting Party, and shall file a copy with the Office of the Secretary of
the Board or other BPU office as indicated by the BPU in connection with a Proceeding and with
the Hearing Officer.

Section J. Heaving for Compliance with Discovery: A Party who has been denied
information or data demanded under these Rules may request a hearing by the Hearing Officer,
by stating that the information, data or inspection demanded will not be provided within the time
prescribed in these Rules, and notifying the Party upon whom the demand was made and the
Hearing Officer personally or by telephone of the request for a hearing.

Section K. Ruling on Motion for Compliance: The Hearing Officer shall have the
authority to grant or deny any request for a hearing, subject to the provisions of these Rules. The
Hearing Officer, after investigation, review of the pleadings, and the hearing of oral arguments,
if any, shall rule on the motion for compliance with discovery and shall notify the Parties
concemned by telephone or in Writing of such ruling. Any such ruling is subject to review,
modification or reversal by the Board as provided in Article VI, Section G above. Failure by any
Intervenor to comply with a ruling or order of the Hearing Officer, or of the Board, is
inconsistent with the Code of Ethics prescribed in Article II, and the Intervenor may be subject to
the sanctions prescribed therein.

4842-7253-3301.%



ARTICLE VIII

PROCEEDINGS AND DOCKETS

Section A. Secretary’s Formal File: The Board Secretary or his or her delegate shall
maintain a file of documents filed pursuant to these Rules which shall be open for public
inspection during normal business hours between 8:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M, Monday through
Friday, at 540 Minnesota Avenue, Kansas City, Kansas 66101.

Section B. Rejection of Documents: Documents which are not in substantial compliance
with these Rules, Board directives or applicable laws and statutes may be rejected. If rejected,
such documents will be retwned with an indication of the deficiencies therein. Tendered
documents which have been rejected shall not be entered upon the docket. Acceptance of a
document for filing shall not be construed by any Party as a determination that the document
complies with all requirements of the Board, and is not a waiver of such requirements. The
Board, the Secretary of the Board or his or her designee or the Hearing Officer may require
amendments of a document.

Section C. Opening: At the opening of the Proceeding, the Hearing Officer shall
introduce or caused to be introduced for the record the public notice of the Proceeding and proof
of its publication. The Hearing Officer shall also name for the record the Intervenors. The
Hearing Officer shall name for the record the persons making Limited Appearances, as such
persons speak.

Section D. Order of Presentation: Subject to the discretion of the Hearing Officer, the
order of presentation shall be as follows:

PUBLIC PORTION OF PROCEEDING

(1) Opening statements by Parties (as to any Party in attendance at the Public
Portion of the Proceeding).

(2) BPU staff presentation.

(3)  Limited Appearances.

TECHNICAL PORTION OF PROCEEDING

4 BPU staff presentation and presentation of reports by consultants.
&) i’resentations by Intervenors.

(©) BPU and/or Intervenors rebuttal,

The Bearing Officer may set reasonable time limits for oral statements and presentation
of documents, and may exclude or limit cumulative, repetitious or immaterial evidence.

4842.7253.3301.5



Section E. Record of Proceeding: A record of the Proceeding shall be kept by a court
reporter or by a reliable recording device, and a written transcript of such Proceeding, in whole
or is part, shall be made available at the cost of reproduction.

ARTICLE IX

EVIDENCE

Section A. Form and Admissibility: Although technical rules of evidence need not be
applied, the substantive rights of the Parties shall be preserved.

Section B. Objections: When objections or motions to strike are made to the admission
or exclusion of evidence, the grounds relied upon shall be stated briefly. Formal objections to
rulings are unnecessary and need not be taken.

section C. Offer of Proof: An offer of proof for the record shall consist of a statement of
the substance of the evidence to which objection has been sustained. The Hearing Officer may
ask an Intervenor to sununarize such Intervenor’s proposed testimony so that the Hearing Officer
may determine whether the testimony is appropriate.

Section D. Witnesses: Witnesses shall testify under oath or affirmation. At the time of
testifying the witness shall have in his possession and available for inspection any Writing upon
which his testimony relies. '

Section E. Documentary Evidence: If relevant and material matter in evidence is
included in a document containing other matters, the Party offering it shall designate specifically
the portion so offered. If other matter in the document would unnecessarily encumber the
record, the document will not be received in evidence. However, the Hearing Officer may
authorize a copy of the relevant and material portion of the matter to be received as an exhibit.
Other Parties shall be afforded opportunity to examine the entire document and to offer in
evidence copies of other portions thereof believed to be relevant and material.

ARTICLE X

RULES

These Rules shall be liberally construed to secure just, speedy and inexpensive
determination of the issues presented. In special cases and for good cause shown, the Hearing
Officer may permit deviations from the Rules. Rules may be amended, revoked or modified at
any time by the Board without notice.

ARTICLE X1

BOARD DETERMINATION

A, Decision: Within five (5) days after the completion of the public hearing, the
Board shall fix such rates as it deems justified pursuant to its findings and the evidence presented
at the public hearing.

-

10
4842-7253-3301.5



B. Service of Board Determinations: Board determinations shall be made available
for public inspection in the Board Secretary’s file of the proceedings (Section E of Article VIII).
Board determinations shall be served on the Intervenors in the Proceeding by the Secretary of the
Board or his or her designee by mail. Service pursuant to this Rule may also be accomplished by
personal delivery of a copy.

ARTICLE XII

CONTINUANCES

The Proceeding may be continued from time to time by the Hearing Officer or the Board
until all Parties and persons making Limited Appearances have had an opportunity to make their
relevant presentations and until the Board has had an opportunity to make its determinations.

11
4§42-7253-3301.5



APPENDIX A

JOHN Q. ATTORNEY

SMITH, SMITH, AND SMITH, INC.
1234 5th Street

Kansas City, Kansas

(913) 123-4567
ATTORNEY FOR ABC COMPANY
KANSAS CITY, KANSAS BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES
RATE HEARING
PETITION TO INTERVENE

The ABC Company hereby notices its intention to intervene in the Kansas City, Kansas
Board of Public Utilities rate increase hearing.

The ABC Company is a utility customer of the Kansas City, Kansas Board of Public
Utilities.

It is the position of the ABC Company that the Kansas City, Kansas Board of Public
Utilities should/should not adopt the proposed rate increase. In its intervention the ABC
Company will show that:

L.
2.

12
4842-7253-3301.5



These Rules of Procedure for Public Hearing on Rate Increases are hereby approved as of
September 26, 2016.

BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES OF THE
CITY OF KANSAS CITY, KANSAS

By: @gm l %4/7)

Don L. Gray, General Manfiger

Approved as to Form:

Attorney for the Board of Public Utilities
Kathryn P. Peters, Kutak Rock LLP







